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Exemption No. 82-5232

Date: 19th september, 2002 o esss—
Securiies nd Exchange Commisson ‘\,\3\\M\\\l\\\\!\\\i\\\l\\\\l\\\\l\\\\l\\\l!\\ 1]

Division of Corporate Finance
Office of International Corporate Finance CITIC PACIFIC

Room 5 (stop=3a&y j L
Judiciary Plaza -

450 Fifth Street, N.W.
Washington D.C. 20549

U.S.A.

Dear Sirs,

“SUpPL

For the purpose of continuing to claim exemption pursuant to Rule 12g 3-2(b) under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, we hereby furnish to the Commission the
information required by Rule 12g 3-2(b).

Re: CITIC Pacific Limited (“the Company”)

Set out in the annexure is a list of information, copies of which are enclosed herewith,
that the Company since August 21, 2002 (i) made or was required to make public
pursuant to the laws of Hong Kong (ii) filed or was required to file with the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKSE”) on which the securities of the
Company are traded and which was made public by the HKSE; and (ii1) distributed or
was required to distribute to the holders of the securities of the Company.

Also set forth therein in connection with each item is (i) the date on which the
particular item was or is required to be made public, filed with the HKSE, or
distributed and (i1) the entity requiring that item be made public, filed with the HKSE
or distributed.

Please feel free to contact the undersigned should you have any question concermng

the above. Pﬁ@@ SSED

Thank you for your attention. SEP 2 4 3002
Yours faithfully, ' ;&%ﬁgﬁﬁ
For and on behalf of

CITIC PACIFIC LIMITED

N Lo 92>

Company Secretary

Encl.
AT/wy/LTR-1943

CITIC PacificLtd 32nd Floor, CITIC Tower, 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong

Tel: 2820 2111 Fax: 2877 2771 Email: contact@citicpacific.com  Web Site: www.citicpacific.com
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CITIC PACIFIC

PRESS RELEASE

APPOINTMENT OF HONORARY CHAIRMAN

The directors of CITIC Pacific Limited (“the Company™) are pleased to announce that

Mr. Wang Jun is appointed as the Honorary Chairman of the Company with effect

from August 26, 2002 in recognition of his invaluable contributions over the years.

Mr. Wang Jun is the chairman of China International Trust and Investment
Corporation, the major shareholder of the Company, and has been giving full support
to the Company which is conducive to its successful development. The directors are

confident that the Company will benefit greatly from his continuing support.

Hong Kong, August 26, 2002

CITIC Pacific Ltd 32nd Floor, CTTIC Tower, 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: 28202111 Fax: 2877 2771 Email: contact@citicpaciﬁc.com WebSite: www.citicpacific.com
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and Loss Account

S months ended
30 Junc
Nete pitir) 2001
Ueasdited Unaudired

in nismillin

Turnover 11,481 3,787
Profit from Consclldated Activities 3 135 1,288
Share ef Profhts fess Lossas of )

Assoclated Companles ) 1,107 m
Not Finance Charges i (67
Profit before Tazatlon 2.0 L4
Tazatlon 5 (181} (155)
Proflt sfter Tazation 2,068 1,989
Minerity Interests S (13} (39}
Profit Atiributable to Shareholders 1,965 1,500
Dividends 6 ;

intsrim Dividend Proposed (657) (139)
Transfer {tal/from Raservas : ' (10} 1
Earnings per Share [HKS) . 7 0.897 . 0683
Dividond per Share {HKS$) : )

« Interim 0.30 0.20

Notes:

t Significant accounting policies
Theae condensed unaudited consphidaied imerim atcounts (“the
Accounts”) are prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Statement
of Standard Accounting Pracrice (*SSAP™) No. 25 “Interim
Financial Reporiing™ isiued by the Hong Kong Socicty of
Accountants and Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limired.

The Accounts should be read in conjunciion with the 2001 anaval
accounis.

The accounting policies wied in the preparation of the Accounts
are consistent with those used in the annual accounts for the year
ended 31 December 2001 except that the Group has adopred new
of revised SSAPs, parsicularly SSAP No. 34 “Employee Benefits™
and SSAP No, 11 “Foreign Currency Translation” which became
cffective Tor the current 2ccounting pertod. These adoprions have
no significanr impact on the Group's financial starements except
that the adoprion of SSAP No. 34 by CITIC Pacific’s associared
company, Cathay Pacific Airways Limited, has reduced the CITIC
Pacific's attcibutable opening retained cacnings by HK$148 million,

-

2 Turnover and segment information
An analysis of the group's rurnover and prafit from consolidated
activities before ner finance charges and share of profits less losses
befose taxation of associated companies by principal activities are «
as follows:
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An analysis of group’s turnover by geographical area is as follows:

in uxSmillion 2002 2001
By geographical ares:
Hong Kon& 4,538 4,358
Mainland China 6,408 3,644
Japan 223 224
Others 12 561 .
11,481 8,787
—r— em——

3 The profit from consolidated acrivities is arrived st after crediting
and charging:

in HeSmillion 2002 2001
Dividend income from investmenus 228 255
Net gain from investments s1 40
Cost of inventories 5,820 4,833
Depreciation and amortisation 268 241
Goodwill amortisation 10 3

—

‘4 Net finznce charges included interest expense of HK$275 million
(2001: HK$382 million).

5 Hong Kong profits rax is calculated at 16% {2001: 16%) on the
estimated assessable profit for the period, Overseas taxation is
calculated on the cstimated assesssble profic for the i:riad at the
rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates. Detailed 2y follows: -

in neSmillion 2002 2001
Company and subiidiary companies
Hong Kong profits tax 67 64
Qverseas waration 15 31
Deferred taxation 3) (1

Avsociated companies

Hong Kong profits t3x 40
Ovetieas taxation 35 36
Defered taxation 7

161 155
—
& Dividends
in wxSmillion X 2002 2000
2001 Final dividend paid: HK$0.60
(2000: HK$0.65) per share 1,314 1,427
2002 Interim dividend proposed:
HK$0.30 (2001: HKS$0.20)
per share 657 439

7  The calculacion of earnings per share is based on profis anriburable
10 thareholders of HK$1,965 million {2001: HK$1,500 million)
and on 2,189,7B0,160 shares in issue for the period (2001

"2,196.000,160 shares in issue). .

- No diluted earnings per shate is presented for the six months ended
30 June 2002 as 5&: exeicise n}P:ll the share options ounitanding
during the period have no dilurive effect on the eatnings per share.

8" Comparative figutes have been adjusted 10 conform with the cusrent

restntation as required undes the new or revised Hong Kong
E\an:mtm of Standard Accounting Pratiice implemented.

FINANCIAL REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

Treasury Policy

The Group’s overall treasury and funding policies have remained
the same as those described in che annual report for the year
ended 31 December 2001, -
Group Liguldity and Financlal Rescurces

As of 30 June 2002, the Group's total outstanding debt was
HKS$12.1 billion (31 December 2001: HK$14.6 billion), cash and
deposit with banks were HK$3.2 billion giving a net debr of
HK$8.9 billion comparcd 1o HKS$10 billion at 3) December 2001.
Net debr divided by ro1al capiral was 17%,

As of 30 june 2002, the Company's borrowing structure is
summarised in the following tables:

Quisianding Debs Maturity Profile

2007 nd
In xS miffins 200 2003 200 008 2006 Beyond Toual
Patens Company ™ o uo3sm e} w350
Sabsidiaries 35 B5 . s {65 3 [ ]
Towdd Ouuianding Debr  1,HE 7 366 565 1A% 3S% 1.0%
— — c— — —— —

—
(1) Including 2 USS450 million globsl bond which was issued by s
whally owned specisl purposes vehicle.

Source of Debe Financing

Hx$ million Percentage
Bank Loans 7,806 65%
Private Placement 780 6%
Bonds 3,510 29%

12,096 100%
— —————

CITIC Pacific expects to sign in late August & HK$2.5 billion
5.5¢7 year syndicated loan écili:y which will further extend the
debr maurity profile and lower the Group’s overall cost of funds.
As of 30 June 2002, Group's undrawn available facilities toralled
HK38.1 billion. Approximately HK$5.3 billion were commicted
term loans, HK$1.7 billion were money marker lines and the
balance were trade facilities. These undrawn available facilities,
combined with the strong recurrent cash flow generated from
operations, provide ample %nzn:i:l resources and Hexibility 1o che
Croup to implement its investment stracegies.

As of 30 June 2002, the Company had interest rate swap agreements
outitanding with a notional amount of approximately HK$2
billion. Under these agreements, CITIC Pacific is ro exchange
either fixed or flosting rate interest with its counterparties, without
the exchange of the underlying notional amounts. The objective is
to stabilise the overall cost of borrowings over time.

As at.30 June 2002, approximately 66% of the Group's total
borrowings after swap bear interest atr floating rates and the
remaining 34% are at fixed races, The average all-in cost of debt
including hedging costs in the first half 2002 was 4.4% compared
with 6.1% 3 year before. -

CITIC Pacific enrers into cross currency swap contracts o change
the denomination of its borrowings-as parr of its management o
limit foreign currency exposures. The Company does not engage
in-foreign currency speculation. Ar 30 June 2002, the Company
had total cross currency swap contracts outstanding with a notional
amount of spproximately HK$1.3 billion,

The denominarion of the Group's borrowings after currency swaps
and denomination of the cash and deposits with banks 2t 30 June
2002 were:

et millen Equinelnt

Deaomination HK$ USS [Renminbi Yen Other Total
Debt Dutsranding 001 67 1012 53 S0 ] 1,096
Cash 1nd Deposins A6 ] 1464 1069 ] 134 3
Nee Botrowings 373 ] 48 i57) 308 511 .85
Percentage 2% 34% 0% % % 100%
Capital Commitment and Contingent Llabliltios

As 3t 30 June 2002, the Group’s contracted capiral commitment
was HK$998 million and the Group's contingent liabilities were
nat significandy changed from the'last year end.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at the end of June 2002, the Group employed 11,940 people in
its headquarters in Hong Kong and its principal subsidiary
companies worldwide, The two main areas irr which these principal
subsidiaries operate 2re in Hong Kong and Mainland China,
employing 4,205 and 7,518 seaff respectively. Another 217 staff
are employed primarily in Japan, Singapote and Canada. The total
staff cost for the six months ended 30 June 2002 was HK$646

million.

The Group's overall policies on human resource managemens
remain largely compatible with major employers in the terricories
it operates in.

Under the CITIC Pacific Share Incentive Plan 2000 (“the Plan™)
adopted on 31 May, 2000, the Board may invite any director,
executive or employee of the Company or any of its subsidiaries to
subscribe for options over the Company's shares.

On 28 May 2002 options to subscribe for a total of 11,550,000
shares in the Company representing 0.53% of the issued share
capiral, at the exercise price of HK$18.20 per share were granted
under the Plan. All options granted and accepred can be exercised

" in whole or in purt within § years from the date of grane. All were

accepeed. and none were exercised, cancelled or lapsed in the period
sp o 30 June, 2002,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CITIC Pacific is committed to excellent standards of corporate
governance and 3 full description of the operation of the Board,
System of Internal Control, Audit Committee, Codes and financial
teporting may be found on page 36 of the 2001 Annual Repost,

The Audit Committee of the'Board, consisting of three independent
non-executive diregtors, has reviewed the Incerim Report with:

management and the Company's intetnal and externsl auditors
and recommended its adoption by the Board,

The Interim Accounts, which are prepared in accordance with
SSAP 25-“Interim Financial Reporting”, have been roviewed by
the Company’s independent aufimu PricewaterhouseCoopers in
accordance with the Auditing Standard SAS 700 “Engagements To
Review Interim Financial Reports” except that the scope did not
extend to the results of the listed associsted company, Cathay
Pacific Airways Limited.

Duting the six months ended 30 June 2002, the Company was in
compliance with the Code of Best Practice as set out in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Sccurities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER

The Directors have declared an interim dividend of HK$0.30
(2001: HK$0.20) per share for the yeat ending 31 December 2002
payable on 19 September 2002 to sharcholdets whose names appear
on the Register of Members of the Company on 17.September

2002, The Register of Members of the Company will be closed”

from 11 September 2002 to 17 Seprember 2002, both days
inclusive, during which period no share transfer will be eifected.
In order to qualify for the interim dividend, all transfers,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with the Company's Share Registrars, Tengis Limited, at 4ch Floor,

* Hutchison House, 10 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration

not later than 4:00 p.m. on 10 Seprember 2002.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the period,
Neither the Company nor any of iss subsidiaty comianiu has
purchased or sold any of the Company's shares during the period.
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This announcement contains certain forward-looking statements
with respect ro the financial condition, results of operacions and
business of the Group. These forward-fooking statements represent
the Company's expectations or beliefs concerning future events
and involve known and unknown tisks and uncescainty that could
cause actual results, performance or events to differ materially
from those expressed or implied in such statements.

INTERIM REPORT AND FURTHER INFORMATION

A copy of the announcement will be found on the Company’s
website (www,ciricpacific.com) and the Stock Exchange’s website
{www.hkex.com.hk). The additional information in Interim Report
including a full financial analysis will be posted on the Company's
website as soon as-possible and no Jater than 10 September 2002
the Full Interim Report will be senc to shareholders and made
available on the website of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

By Order of the Board
Alice Tso Mun Wai
Company Secrerary

"Hong Keng, 26 August 2002
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Announcement of Interim Results

for the Six Months Ended 30 June 2002

CITIC Pacific Limi

Chairman’s Business Review

tn the fisst six months of 2002 CITIC Pacific’s net profit was
HKS$1.965 million compared with HK$1,500 million in the first
half of 2001. In recognition of the 31% increase in profits and ¢he
strong cash Aow in this period, the directors have resolved to
increase the interim dividend from HK$0.20 ro HK$0,30.

The increase in profics is mainly due to the following faccors:
aviation business improved dramatically compared with the second
half of 2001, The trend of improvement is particularly notable
since the second quarter of this year. In che firse half of 2002,
CITIC Pacific effectively reduced overhead expenses and improved
operating efficiency. Neu financing coses decreased significantly,
thanks to the lower market interest rate and borrowing costs: our
communication businesses continued to grow steadily with
increased profit contribution; the sale of residential aparrments in
Siena One at Discovery Bay and The Victoria Towers in Kowloon
also contributed to the overall profit.

The firse half of 2002 was particularly difficult for Hong Kong,
and in common with many other organizations, CITIC Pacific
applied itself to improving efficiency in all our businesses. Ahhough
this process was painful, the positive resules will be of gr::{ long-
term benefic 1o the Company in enabling produczs to.be offered ar

Fower cost.

o dhe fullowing pages | will focus on the new developments and
changes from the full descriprion of CITIC Pacifie’s business in

che Liss nnual report.

Infrastructure

Infrastruciute continues to be the main focus-of CITIC Pacific’s
business 10 which it provides strong and stable profits and cash
(lows.

Communications

Since its acquisition by CITIC Pacific in mid 2000, C/T/C Tefecem
/616 has established itself as the premier International Direct
Dialling wholesaler. Menthly IDD tnaffic volume reached aimost
200 million minutes in June 2002, some 33% higher than just six
monchs carlier and 141% higher than the end of June 2001, CITIC
“Telecom 1616 is currently focusing an diversifying its businesses
by offering its customers 2 range of valuc-added seevices. These
non-IDD telecom services are expected (o bring additional revenue
and growth ro CITIC Telecom 1616 in the future.

CPCNet specializes in Internet Protocol services for corporate
businesses. In March, it launched its *TrueConneet”, Virtual Private
Network seevice to serve the needs of customers with business
spanning the Greater China region. Eight points of presence have
slready been established {n Mainland China and another four are
planned for the end of 2002, CPCNet now has a sizable customer
pipeline for the “TrueConnect™ service, which is already proficable,
and is in negotiation with potential business partners in other
parts of the world. CPCNet will also be launching other new
services such as Collaboration Software Services, enhanced sceuriry
solutions (o businesses and manzged solutions o the education
sector for innovative teaching programs.

CITIC Guoan and Macau Telecom also made their contsiburions o
the resuls of telecommunications business.

Power

The existing power plants are sll operating smoothly and generating
steady income. Total electricicy generated by CITIC Pacific's power
plants was 6,308 million kwh, an increase of 21% compared with
the first six months of 2001.

Peeparation for the construction of Ligang Phase 11 Power Station
is continuing. At the same time, the second unic of 200MW of
the co-generation plane in Hobhot is near completion and the
development of the 200MW co-generation plant in Jilin is
procceding according to schedule with the target completion date
of December of 2002 and April of 2003 for the two units,

€

Civil Facilities - Roads, Bridges and Tunnels

CITIC Pacific’s bridges, tunnels and road in Shanghai continue to
contribute steady and stable cash flows that have been experienced
for many years.

In Hong Kong, the Western Harbour Crossing (WHC) traffic
averaged 39,486 per day ar the end of June was much below
projection whilst the Eastern Harbour Tunnel registered an average
rraffic volume of 73,511 vehicles per day, a slight decreuse from
the same period lase year. The lack of traffic growth in boch tunnels
is a serious concern and appropriate action may have to be 1aken
in due course o address the issue of satisfactory sharcholders’

.cecurn.

In August. Hong Kong Tunnels and Highways Management Co
Led, was awarded 2 new contract by the Hong Kong Government
(o continue to manige the operations of the Cross Harbour Tunnel.

Aviation

For the six months ended 30 Junc 2002 Cathay Pacifics profit rose
7% from che same peried in 200t to HKS1.412 million, Boch
cargo and passenger load factors rose bur the yield for both
declined, Cost per available ron kilometer was well under control.
Needless 1o say.' these resules are significantly beteer than in the
second half of 2001, which was particularly difficulc for the world's

aicliae industry.

Dragoriir iecarded a reduced interim profvconipared 0 thvsame
perivod lust year. However, the aicline has emerged from che
downtrend which began in the fourth quarter of last year and the
recent performance s parcicularly strong. In July, Dragonair began
flights between Hong Kong and Taipei which is expecied to become
a new revenue generator. The Hong Kong - Taipei route-is'already
operated by Cathay Pacific. This is the first passenger route in
which two Hong Kong based airlines have operated in competition.
CITIC Pacific supports this change of policy which is appropriate
to the future development of the Hong Keng aviation industry.

Property

Up to 30 June 2002, 98% of the 298 flats at Siena One ac
Discovery Bay and 699% of 988 apartments at The Victoria Towers
in Kowloon have been sold. Sienz Two will begin pre-sale shortly,
Site clearance of Phase 1 of CITIC Pacific’s residentia} development
in"Shanghai - Westgate Garden - has been compleed and
foundation work is scheduled to commence in the fourth quarter
of this year.

Rental income from CITIC Square and Royal Pavilien in Shanghai
was recorded for the first time as they were acquired in January
2002 and the contribution from invesiniens properties rose 12%.

Marketing and Distribution

For the first six months of 2002, Dab Chong Hong (DCH) faced a
weak consumer marker in Hong Kong but the market in Mainland
China was stable. DCH profits in the first half of 2002 increased
by 11% compared ro 2001 due to improved efficiency from close
atrention o reducing costs.

Motor: The Hong Kong motor market has been particularly bard
hit by the weak economy. DCH increased its market share by
3-percentage-point to 26%, sclling 4,513 units in the first half of
the year, a decline of only 12% compared with 2 26% drop for
the overall motor market. In the Mainland China market, demand
grew for both imported and domestically made vehicles. In order
to capture the opportunitics presented by this fast growing market,
DCH has focused its ¢ffort on building up its distribution nerworks
in China. During the firsc half of 2002, three Bentley and seven
Renaule showrooms were successfully opened.

Trading: In Hong Kong, the sales of consumer goods and food
commodities have remained stable due to the Company's success
in expanding market share and new products. In Mainland China,

the development of the distribution business has also moved

forward smoothly. After the successful restructuring of the

agriculture and catering business, there has been an improvement
in profits.

Faced with increased competition and ¢he difficule economic
environment, Sims Trading profits have decreased from 2 year
ago. Management is focusing on generating new businesses,
improving efficiency and co-operating with DCH wherever
possible.

Other Businesses

CITIC Capital Markers has consolidated icself under a new holding
company and in its-short life has generated new business,
established working relationships with CITIC Secutities and CITIC
Ka Wah Bank, and begun to recruit high quality staff to pursue its
strategy. In September its main operations will move 1o CITIC
Tower under its new identicy,

Shanghai CP Guojian Pharmaceutical is awaiting approval for its
first medicine to proceed to clinical trial and is proceeding with
the design of its new laboratory and production plant.

Finance

In August, CITIC Pacific raised 3 HK$2.5 billion loan wich
maturities of 5.5 and 7 ycars thereby extending the debt maturity
and reduced interest expense, Supported by stcang recurring cash
Aows from many of our operations, CITIC Pacific certainly has
the financial strength and flexibility to implement its serategics in
the furure.

Looking Ahead

The last twelve months have seen enormous volacility in the markets
in various parts of the world, and there is much uncertainty about
the future, particularly of the US economy. CITIC Pacific is
fortunate to be based in Hong Kong with a singularly deep
knowledge of China. sound businesses that produce good cash
flows many of which have potential ro grow, well structured
finance, good management and s tradision of cperating with
excellent standards of corporate governance.

Our strategy will be to continue to move forward, step-by-step. 10
develop our existing businesses related to China in a systematic
way, especially those related to communications, aviation, power
and marketing and distribution. At the same time we will not
overlook opportunities to purchase sound businesses in our areas
of expertise.

All the Directors and stalf of CITIC Pacific have worked hard in
the last six months, in difficult circumstances, to progress our
company forwasd, and 1 thank them for this and their dedication
and commirment to excellence.

Larey Yung Chi Kin
Chairman
Hong Kong, 26 August 2002
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(D) Dctaits of Movcn.xca( : :
* please delete and insert *N/A® wherever inapplicable

TYPE OF SECURITIES IN MOVEMENT DURING SECURITIES IN {IN NO. OF NEW
SECURITIES ISSUE ATCLOSE | THE MONTH ISSUE AT SHARES ARISING
OF PRECEDING _ CLOSE OF THE |THEREFROM
MONTH MONTH
SHARE OPTIONS*® "No. of Options | Granted |Exercised| Cancelled | No. of Options
Type
CQ:ITIC Pac1f%<; 11,550,000 Nil
{ ' ntiye - _— _—
1 E5135926889 11,550,000 ) ' 1
Exereise pace: -
Hks 18.20
2. -
Exercise prce:
HKS
WARRANTS* Nontinal Value | * Excrcised Nominal Value
Date of Expiry N/A (HKS) (HK$) (HKS)
1.
‘ Subscrption price:
HKS
i 2,
;:i Subscription price:
1 HKS .
o
4 CONVERTIBLES® Converted
. Class  n/a Units (Units) Units
\ Coavertible price:
HKS
o OTHER ISSUES OF
' SHARES® N/A
¥ Rights Issue Price : Issuc and allotment Date
. |Placing Pricc : fssuc and allotment Date:
* |Bonus Issue . Issue and allotment Date:
Scrip Dividend Issuc and allotinent Date :
s Repurchase of share Canccllation Datc -
Redemption of share Redemption Datc :
i Consideration issue | Price: . Jssue and allotment Date :
Others Price: Issue and altotment Date :
: {please specify)
: Total No. of ordinary shares/preference shares/other classes of shares Nil
incrcased/(decreased) during the month: ===
Authorised Signatory:
Remarks :

; ‘ f‘bj“’“

Name: Alice Tso Mun Wai
,. : Title: Company Secretary
Note:

All information contained in this fornn may be reproduced and provided to other information vendors or users of market
data at the sole discretion of the Stock Exchange without prior notification to the company/issuer.




"FORM 1

Monthly Return On Movement of Listed Equity Sccurities
For the month cndcd 31st August, 2002
To : The Listing Division of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Lintited
CC: The Research & Planning Department of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
From: ___ CITIC Pacific Limited
(Name of Company)
Alice Tso Mun Wai Tel No.- 2820-2111
(Name of Responsible Official)
Date : 5th September, 2002 '
(A) Information on Types of Listed Equity Sccuritics :
, (please tick wherever applicable)
1. Ordinary shares : . 2. Preference shares :
Q{ Other classes of shares : please specify shares

! 4. Warrants : plcase specify :
| (B) Movement in Authorised Share Capital:

J‘ No. of msdtrix shares/

PO ICERER MR X Par Valuc Authorised Share Capital

riberelnssonof shares —(HKS) _(HKS)

i
Balance at close

! of preceding month 3,000,000,000 0.40 1,200,000,000

Increase/(Decrease)

(EGM approval date): — _— —
Balance at close “3,000,000,000 0.40 1,200,000,000
| of the month :

o x
i - ,

: (C) Movement in Issucd Share Capital:

No. of No. of Preference No. of other
Qe shares shares classes of shares
Balance at close _
of preceding month: 2,189,780,160 —_ i
Increase/(Decrease) - o
during the month -
Balance at close 2,189,780,160 -_ _—
of the month : == =m——e—m—e
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Exemption No. §2-5232
eXur

CITIC Pacific Limited

istribute W uired to distribute th er e securitie

1. Document : Monthly Return on Movement of Listed Equity Securities
Date : September 5, 2002
Entity Requiring Item : HKSE (pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the HKSE (“HKSE Listing Rules™))

2.  Document : Announcement of Interim Results for the Six Months Ended 30 June
2002
Date : August 26, 2002
Entity Requiring Item : HKSE (pursuant to HKSE Listing Rules)

3. Document : Press Release in connection with the Appointment of Honorary
Chairman
Date : August 26, 2002
Entity Requirement Item : Made public by the Company voluntarily.

4. Document : Interim Report 2002
Date : September 10, 2002 (distribution date)
Entity Requirement Item : HKSE (pursuant to HKSE Listing Rules)

5. Document : Notification to shareholders on new corporate communications and
reply slip
Date : September 10, 2002 (distribution date)
Entity Requirement Item : HKSE (pursuant to HKSE Listing Rules)



-

(D) Dctails of Movement :
* pleasc delete and insert *N/A® wherever inapplicable

TYPE OF SECURITIES IN MOVEMENT DURING SECURITIES IN {IN NO. OF NEW
SECURITIES ISSUE AT CLOSE THE MONTH ISSUE AT SHARES ARISING
OF PRECEDING CLOSE OF THE |THEREFROM
MONTH MONTH
SHARE OPTIONS® No. of Options | Granted |Exercised] Cancelied | MNo. of Options
Type
Share frconts 11,550,000 Nil
v o — U
1.8 Sgezigaﬁen 1ye 11,550,000 ) ' 1
Exercise price: _
Hrs 18.20 -
2. -
Exercise price:
HKS
WARRANTS® Nontinal Value | Excrcised Nominat Value
Date ofE.\'pir);N/A (HK®) (HK$) (HK?$)
I
Subscription price:
HKS
2.
Subscription price:
HKS
CONVERTIBLES® Convered
Class  n/a Units (Units) Units
Coavertible price:
HKS
OTHER ISSUES OF
SHARES* N/A
Rights Issue Price : Issuc and allotmen( Date -
Placing Price : Issuc and allotment Date:
Bonus Issue Issuc and allotment Date:
Scrip Dividend Issuc and allotinent Date : .
Repurchase of share Canccllation Date :
Redemption of share Redemiption Date -
Consideration issue | Price: . Issuc and allotment Date :
Others Price: Issue and allotment Date :
(please specify)
Total No. of ordinary shares/preference shares/other classes of shares Nil
increased/(decreased) during the month:
Authorised Signatory:
Remarks :
M*’ -
Name:Alice Tso Mun Wai
Title: Company Secretary
Note:

All information contained in this fonin may be reproduced and provided to other information vendors or users of market

data at the sole discretion of the Stock Exchange without prior notification to the company/issuer.



Monthly Return On Movement of Listed Equity Sccuritics
For the month ended _ 31st August, 2002

To : The Listing Division of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
CC: The Rescarch & Planning Department of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

From : CITIC Pacific [imited

'FORM 1

(Name of Company)

Alice Tso Mun Wai Tel No. 2820-2111

(Name of Responsible Official)

Date : 5th September, 2002 ' -

(A) Information on Typcs of Listed Equity Sceuritics :
(please tick wherever applicable)

1. Ordinary shares : . 2. Preference shares :
Q(Othcr classes of sharcs : please specify shares
4. Warrants : please specify :

(B) Movement in Authorised Share Capital:

No. of rsdimary shares/

of the month

PR AR BRI UK Par Valuc Authorised Share Capital

ribes £lnssosof shares (HK$) (HK$)
Balance at close
of preceding month 3,000,000,000 0.40 1,200,000,000
Inéreasc/(Decrcasc)
(EGM approval date): —— —_— —

)

Balance at close “3,000,000,000 0.40 1,200,000,000

(C) Movement in Issucd Share Capital:

of the month : = S

No. of - No. of Preference No. of other
@rliare shares shares classes of shares
Balance at close .
of preceding month: 2,189,780,160 - B
Increase/(Decrease) _— —_—
during the month T
Balance at close 2,189,780,160 — _—




Exemption No. 82-5232

Annexure

ITIC Paci imite

Li Information that the Company since August 21, 2002 (i) made or requir

make public pursuant to the laws of Hong Kong (ii) filed or w uire €
wi tock Exchan H ng Limited (“HKSE”) on whi ities
the Company are traded and which was made public by the HKSE; and (iii)
distributed or was required distribute to the holders of the itie
Company

1. Document : Monthly Return on Movement of Listed Equity Securities
Date : September 5, 2002
Entity Requiring Item : HKSE (pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the HKSE (“HKSE Listing Rules”))

2. Document : Announcement of Interim Results for the Six Months Ended 30 June
2002 ‘
Date : August 26, 2002
Entity Requiring Item : HKSE (pursuant to HKSE Listing Rules)

3. Document : Press Release in connection with the Appointment of Honorary
Chairman
Date : August 26, 2002
Entity Requirement Item : Made public by the Company voluntarily.

4.  Document : Interim Report 2002
Date : September 10, 2002 (distribution date)
Entity Requirement Item : HKSE (pursuant to HKSE Listing Rules)

5. Document : Notification to shareholders on new corporate communications and
reply slip
Date : September 10, 2002 (distribution date)
Entity Requirement Item : HKSE (pursuant to HKSE Listing Rules)
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Infrastructure .

Communications Provides services to customers in Hong Kong,
Macau, Mainland China and their trading partners around the
world. CITIC Telecom 1616 is the leading IDD wholesaler in Asia,
CPCNet provides Internet Protocol services for corporate
businesses, CITIC Guoan operates cable TV networks on the
Mainland, and Macau Telecom is Macau SAR’s primary

communications provider.

Power Owus, operates and manages power plants in Mainland China
with current total installed capacity of 2,373MW. The 1,400MW

Ligang Power Plant is the flagship of the Company's power business.

Civil Facilities: Roads, Bridges and Tunnels Interests in all of the
cross Huangpu River facilities in Shanghai, as well as ownership or

management responsibilities in the three harbour crossings in Hong Kong.

Aviation A key participant in Hong Kong’s aviation sector with
interests in Cathay Pacific Airways, Hong Kong Dragon Airlines and
air cargo provider HACTL..

Property

Develops, manages and owns properties, including Hong Kong’s
CITIC Tower, Festival Walk, Discovery Bay and Shanghai’s
Westgate Garden, CITIC Square and Royal Pavilion.
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Serves the people of Hong Kong and Mainland China through Dah
Chong Hong (DCH), distributor of an array of motor vehicles,
consumer and food commodity products and Sims Trading, which
specializes in the distribution of branded food, household and

healtheare products in our major markets, including Macau.

Other / ysinq#;’;ez{

Developing businesses include specialty steel, bio-pharmaceutical
research and development, CITIC Capital Markets Holdings, and
distance learning.
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Net profits increased 31% to Hk$1,965 million

& Cmic Telecom 1616 and CPCNet continued strong growth in the

communications sector

B Aviation operations improved, particularly compared with the

second half of 2001

Infrastructure businesses contributed 71% of profits

@ Strong cash flows, financial strength and flexibility

2 Increased interim dividend

B Moving forward, step-by-step, to develop existing businesses related

to China

FEAMREI1% > 2EETAEAST
IHET

T1%E M E BR B R RS

FEENH: FEEM616 RCPCNet#%
BRARIE R

RAR EFTHEMU MEFBHA S

BReRERY MBI NREREET &

gk il gss il

DR 7 A B S R E MR B A
RA K

in vKS million

2002

2001

Six months ended 30 June

BEAAZTHIEAER

2001
Year ended
31 December
BE+ZA
=+—H
g  LEREETHE

Profit Attributable to Shareholders 1,965 1.500 2,110 BOKEMHERA
Shareholders’ Funds 41,726 41,595 41,489 BREL
Net Debt 3.858 11,457 10,008 SAK

in UK§ LIBRITRI A
Earnings per Share 0.90 0.68 096 HREAN
Dividend per Share 0.30 0.20 0.80 #wREBRE




In the first six months of 2002 Crric Pacific’s net profit was Hk$1,965
million compared with Hk$1,500 million in the first half of 2001. In
recognition of the 31% increase in profits and the strong cash flow in
this period, the directors have resolved to increase the interim dividend
from HK$0.20 to Hk$0.30.

The increase in profits is mainly due to the following factors:
aviation business improved dramatically compared with the second half
of 2001. The wend of improvement is particularly notable since the
second quarter of this vear. In the first half of 2002, Crric Pacific
effectively reduced overhead expenses and improved operating
efficiency. Net financing costs decreased significantly, thanks to the
lower market interest rate and borrowing costs; our communication
businesses continued to grow steadily with increased profit
contribution; the sale of residential apartments in Siena One at
Discovery Bay and The Victoria Towers in Kowloon also contributed to
the overall profit.

The first half of 2002 was particularly difficult for Hong Kong, and
in common with many other organizations, Crtic Pacific applied itself to
improving efficiency in all our businesses. Although this process was
painful, the positive results will be of great long-term benefit to the
Company in enabling products to be offered at lower cost.

In the following pages I will focus on the new developments and
changes from the full description of Crric Pacific’s business in the last

annual report.

Infrastructure
Infrastructure continues to be the main focus of Ciric Pacific’s business
to which it provides strong and stable profits and cash flows.

Communications
Since its acquisition by Crric Pacific in mid 2000, Crric Telecom 1616
has established itself as the premier International Direct Dialling
wholesaler. Monthly b traffic volume reached almost 200 million
minutes in June 2002, some 33% higher than just six months earlier
and 141% higher than the end of June 2001. Crric Telecom 1616 is
currently focusing on diversifying its businesses by offering its
customers a range of value-added services. These non-mb telecom
services are expected to bring additional revenue and growth to Civic
Telecom 1616 in the future.
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CPCNet specializes in Internet Protocol services for corporate
businesses. In March, it launched its “TrueConnect”, Virtual Private
Network service to serve the needs of customers with business spanning
the Greater China region. Eight points of presence have already been
established in Mainland China and another four are planned for the end
of 2002. CPCNet now has a sizable customer pipeline for the
“TrueConnect” service, which is already profitable, and is in negotiation
with potential business partners in other parts of the world. CPCNet
will also be launching other new services such as Collaboration
Software Services, enhanced security solutions to businesses and
managed solutions to the education sector for innovative teaching
programs.

Crmic Guoan and Macau Telecom also made their contributions to

the results of telecommunications business.

Power

The existing power plants are all operating smoothly and generating
steady income. Total electricity generated by Crnc Pacific’s power
plants was 6,308 million kwh, an increase of 21% compared with the
first six months of 2001.

Preparation for the construction of Ligang Phase m Power Station is
continuing. At the same time, the second unit of 200MW of the
co-generation plant in Hohhot is near completion and the development
of the 200MW co-generation plant in Jilin is proceeding according to
schedule with target completion dates of December of 2002 and April
of 2003 for the two units.

Civil Facilities: Roads, Bridges and Tunnels

Crric Pacific’s bridges, tunnels and road in Shanghai continue to
contribute steady and stable cash flows that have been experienced for
many years.

In Hong Kong, the Western Harbour Crossing (wHc) traffic averaged
39,486 per day at the end of June was much below projection whilst the
Eastern Harbour Tunnel registered an average traffic volume of 73,511
vehicles per day, a slight decrease from the same period last year. The
lack of traffic growth in both tunnels is a serious concern and
appropriate action may have to be taken in due course to address the
issue of satistactory shareholders’ return.

In August, Hong Kong Tunnels and Highways Management Co Ltd.
was awarded a new contract by the Hong Kong Government to

continue to manage the operations of the Cross Harbour Tunnel.
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Chairman’s Business Revietw

Aviation

For the six months ended 30 June 2002 Cathay Pacific’s profit rose 7%
from the same period in 2001 to Hk$1,412 million. Both cargo and
passenger load factors rose but the yield for both declined. Cost per
available ton kilometer was well under control. Needless to say, these
results are significantly better than in the second half of 2001, which
was particularly difficult for the world’s airline industry.

Dragonair recorded a reduced interim profit compared to the same
period last year. However, the airline has emerged from the downtrend
which began in the fourth quarter of last vear and the recent
performance is particularly strong. In July, Dragonair began flights
between Hong Kong and Taipei which is expected to become a new
revenue generator. The Hong Kong — Taipei route is already operated
by Cathay Pacific. This is the first passenger route in which two Hong
Kong based airlines have operated in competition. Crric Pacific
supports this change of policy which is appropriate to the future

development of the Hong Kong aviation industry.

Property
Up to 30 June 2002, 98% of the 298 flats at Siena One at Discovery
Bay and 69% of 988 apartments at The Victoria Towers in Kowloon
have been sold. Siena Two will begin pre-sale shortly. Site clearance of
Phase 1 of Crmic Pacific’s residential development in Shanghai -
Westgate Garden — has been completed and foundation work is
scheduled to commence in the fourth quarter of this year.

Rental income from Crric Square and Royal Pavilion in Shanghai
was recorded for the first time as they were acquired in January 2002

and the contribution from investment properties rose 12%.

Markelling and Distribultion
For the first six months of 2002, Dah Chong Hong (bcH) faced a weak
consumer market in Hong Kong but the market in Mainland China
was stable. DCH profits in the first half of 2002 increased by 11%
compared to 2001 due to improved efficiency from close attention to

reducing costs.
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Motor: The Hong Kong motor market has been particularly hard
hit by the weak economy. bcH increased its market share by
3-percentage-point to 26%, selling 4,513 units in the first half of the
vear, a decline of only 12% compaved with a 26% drop for the overall
motor market. In the Mainland China market, demand grew for both
imported and domestically made vehicles. In order to capture the
opportunities presented by this fast growing market, Dc has focused its
effort on building up its distribution networks in China. During the first
half of 2002, three Bentley and seven Renault showrooms were
successfully opened.

Trading: In Hong Kong, the sales of consumer goods and food
commodities have remained stable due to the Company’s success in
expanding market share and new products. In Mainland China, the
development of the distribution business has also moved forward
smoothly. After the successful restructuring of the agriculture and
catering business, there has been an improvement in profits.

Faced with increased competition and the difficult economic
environment, Sims Trading’s profits have decreased from a year ago.
Management is focusing on generating new businesses, improving

efficiency and co-operating with DCH wherever possible.

Other Businesses
Crric Capital Markets has consolidated itself under a new holding
company and in its short life has generated new business, established
working relationships with Crric Securities and Ciric Ka Wah Bank, and
begun to recruit high quality staff to pursue its strategy. In September
its main operations will move to Crmc Tower under its new identity.
Shanghai cr Guojian Pharmaceutical is awaiting approval for its
first medicine to proceed to clinical trial and is proceeding with the

design of its new laboratory and production plant.

Finance

In August, Citic Pacific raised a Hk$2.5 billion loan with maturities of
5.5 and 7 years thereby extending the debt maturity and reduced
interest expense. Supported by strong recurring cash flows from many
of our operations, Cric Pacific certainly has the financial strength and

flexibility to implement its strategies in the future.
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Chairman’s Business Review FEHRE

Looking Ahead MiABE
The last twelve months have seen enormous volatility in the markets in =~ #BE—F8 » #HRSMAGHRERE > KRH
various parts of the world, and there is much uncertainty about the AR FBHERREEE ALY - ZEHE

future, particularly of the Us economy. Citic Pacific is fortunate to be PEFELLAFE  HPRMHEBEME
based in Hong Kong with a singularly deep knowledge of China, sound KR ENEE - AREHERRREBLANRE
businesses that produce good cash flows many of which have potential 71> £EMHHFHEHRRE - REFLAH > &

to grow, well structured finance, good management and a tradition of BHEFOEERR LHALRAERTEHR
operating with excellent standards of corporate governance. EBEEE -

Our strategy will be to continue to move forward, step-by-step, to T e SR s 2 LUR Py o KBS B
develop our existing businesses related to China in a systematic way, EERBANHAER  LUBREE M
especially those related to communications, aviation, power and Z - BERESAREHBEL - FE - &M
marketing and distribution. At the same time we will not overlook MEEEE . ERAAERNEE  WHENRE
opportunities to purchase sound businesses in our areas of expertise. E5

All the Directors and staff of Cr1ic Pacific have worked hard in the TEREEREELETAREAEAS
last six months, in difficult circumstances, to progress our company A BFLEER > SorEHEEA
forward, and I thank them for this and their dedication and b oo SR TSR OB S - A A
commitment to excellence. BCEH -

Larry Yung Chi Kin Chairman RuRk IH

Hong Kong, 26 August 2002 Fik —BE-ENAZ+~HE




RinanciallRevicidandfanalysis HREERS

Consolidated Financial Results REmml
for the & months ended 30 June 2002 BE_EE_ERBRZTHLAER
Profit Attributable to Shareholders BREBLRT

wkSmithion  JERE BT

1997 — ] 3,965*
1998 — 12,628

1999 [ 12,735

2000 - 13,291

2001 [ 12,110

Six month results 78 3 %4t

2001 . — 11,500

2002 l 11,965

*  additionally a 11k83,236 million profit from the sale of Hong Kong Telecom shares was A E—ANEFE G ETE TR G EBEINE
recorded in 1997. FEH=1 _B=F EHT-

The net profit attributable to shareholders for the 6 months ended 2002 ~ ZFZEZFH/N A 2 BRRBEL S 555 %
was HK$1,965 million, an increase of 31% compared with 1k$1,500 TILEATEAEL R_FE—-FRPREZ
million achieved for the same period in 2001, R RETTEMS1% ©




Financial Review and Analysis

Contribution

The following chart shows the after tax contribution each business
made to corporate interest expense of debt raised by Crric Pacific,
overhead expenses and amortisation of goodwill. The percentage is the

proportion of contribution amongst the businesses in the table.
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Six months ended
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2001 2002
HKS m 7 %’ %' M‘ HKS m %l HKS 2 %I HKS %
BEXRER Infrastructure
ER Civil Infrastructure 1.099 % 1.382 4 1,292 o 1,320 - 1.362 o 678 24 632 2%
frize Aviation 702 13 (1) 659 " % % 423 2 453 20
IEE 3 Communications 322 P 65 5 51 : 92 5 295 9 165 s 351 5
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B Others
1.587 270 7A0) 492 633 296 | 488
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S48 B3 86 Marketing & Distribution 360 7 330 g 230 5 226 5 119 4 119 6 122 5
iy Manufacturing 2 0 18 0 22 1 29 1 93 3 59 3 6l 3
THER1E Consumer Credit 84 9 167 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 g 0 9 0
Contribution % BRI %
Six months ended 30 June 2002 Six months ended 30 June 2001
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24%
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Compared with the contribution for 6 months ended 2001 :

a

Civil Infrastructure decreased by 7% mainly due to the disposal of
all 50% interest in Chongging Chang Jiang Lir Bridge to the joint
venture partner in December 2001.

Aviation increased 7% mainly due to increased profit from Cathay
Pacific as a result of reduced operating costs including a lower
average fuel price offsetting a 2% decrease in revenue, and better
results at HACTL.

Communications increased 113% due to a greater contribution
from the Group’s major communications businesses.

Power Generation decreased by 17% mainly due to decreased
dividend declared by the operating companies.

Property sales at both Siena One at Discovery Bay and The
Victoria Tower in Kowloon contributed profit in 2002. In the first
half of 2001, property sales were insignificant. Property leasing
profit increased as a result of the Shanghai properties newly
acquired in January 2002.

Manufacturing profit increased mainly due to increased sales

of steel.

Geographical Distribution

Six months ended 30 fune 2002 Asatr 30 June 2002
BE_EFXZENAZ1HIEAEA ZEFRECHEXPITAEE

63% 0%

1%

Contribution % %% Assets at Book Value % B EEH
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Financial Review and Analvsis

interest Expense
The Group’s interest expense decreased from HK$382 million to
HK$275 million mainly due to the decrease of the average cost of

borrowing from 6.1% to 4.4%.

Amortization and Revaluation

Accounting standards require two major adjustments that are unrelated
to the cashflow of our business. Goodwill — the amount paid for buying
a business that exceeds the value of its physical and identifiable assets —
must be amortised to the profit and loss account over its useful life not
exceeding 20 years. In the first half of 2002, HK$97 million of goodwill
was amortised to the profit and loss account a HK$6 milllion increase
compared to 2001.

In certain defined circumstances accounting standards require listed
investments to be revalued to market value at the end of each
accounting period. This revaluation caused Crric Pacific to record an
unrealised gain of HK$46 million in the first half of 2002 compared with
an unrealised gain of HK$19 million in the first half of 2001, a change
of HK$27 million between the two periods.

Taxation
Taxation increased from Hk$155 million in 2001 to HK$161 million in
2002 mainly due to increase in share of taxation of the associated

companies.

Shareholders’ Returns

Crric Pacific’s primary objective is to increase shareholder value for
which it has used earnings per share as a proxy. The Company expects
its businesses to provide returns on investient over their lives that will

provide shareholders with an adequate return on equity.
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Earnings per Share

1997

1998

1999

2000

2001

2001

2002

MK BETT
1.86 1.52
T .30
] 1.24
[ 1 1.29
—11.49
[ 10.96

Six month results 75 @ A 4%
[C"7770.68

—

Earnings per share were HK$0.90 for the 6 months ended 2002, an

increase of 31% compared with +k$0.68 for the same period in 2001.

Cash Flow per Share

1997

1998

1999

2000

2001

2001

2002

kS T
2.3 3.8
SR Kl
C 132
1.7 7.1
KX
2.0 0.7
77 m 7

| ——— ¥
Six monthresults 758 A £ 4%
[ T— N

1.9 1.1
— A

The cash flow per share was HK$3.0 for the 6 months ended 2002.

sREYH

3 Regular £rs
BEHEEY SRER

mm s from Sale of HK Telecom

shares

LEFEERRGZERAN

SEEEEAEH 2 BRI 0.0
BT — RIS 2 0. 68T N1 %o

ShESTR

= Regular Cash Flow per Share
BEHEAZERHSHE

Ml Cash Flow per Share from

the Sale of Business Interests

i EEEER SRR RE

CER_FEABAZERBRERER
#EH3.07Te
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Financial Review and Analysis Bt i [e] B R 7 HT

Shareholders’ Equity REES

ukgbillion B¥HEEET

405 1.0
1997 C m41.5 [ Shareholders’ Funds
" 42.0 0.7 4

1998 - N 407 BRES

38.2 0.7
1999 ” 1389 mm Unimpaired Goodwill
9000 . 41.3 2 438 Writte‘n of‘f to Reserves

415 95 Rl A WE 2 BN
2001 [ N 44.0
June 41.7 25
2002 0 T 44.2

A

Shareholders’ equity defined as shareholders’ funds, plus HK$2.5 billion — fRF L 5 R FE £ 0 b 72 A BRETE Gt 5 L
of unimpaired goodwill written off to reserves for accounting purposes, — ZKRBEFBEY _+AETZEMNR_FF
was HK$44.2 billion as at 30 June 2002. ZERNA=tTHABENEN+ .

Shareholders’ Equity per Share SREREHS

HK ST

1997 \ 119.5

1998 ' —— 201

1999 1 118.3

2000 119.9

2001 120.1

June
2002 120.2
vay:!

Shareholders’ equity per share at 30 June 2002 was 1K$20.2 as CETCERNBEZTHZERERES BB
compared to HK$20.1 at 31 December 2001. 20270 M_FF—E+_HA=+—HUAEY
2017




Dividend per Share

ux $ BT

0.20 050 0.30
1997 T .00

0.20 0.50
1998 T (.70
0.20 0.55 2,00
1999 C 1275
0.20 0.65
2000 [N (.05
0.20 0.60
2001 (.50
0.30

2002 /3

It is proposed to pay an interim dividend for 2002 of Hk$0.30 per share
on 19 September 2002.

mRERR

T3 Interim Dividend ##Ift&

E [inal Dividend KR E

3 Special Dividend S

HERR T EE A AR AR RR-FES
F R BB R 0,30
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Financial Review and Analyses

Turnover

nkSbillion R {ET

I I . D
1997 )
1998
1999 ]
2000
2001 L HE 0
Six month results 7~ A5
2001 ' ! |
2002 CTn | R

Motor trading turnover increased 16% in first half of the year 2002
compared with the same period of 2001, a decline of 15% in Hong
Kong was offset by a 99% growth in the Mainland. The food and
cosmetics turnover grew slowly, but the engineering division turnover
fell due to a lack of new construction contracts. Non-motor turnover fell
5% in aggregate. Manufacturing turnover increased 17% due to
increased sales of steel while communications twrnover increased by

5 times due to the growth of business of Crric Telecorm 1616 Group and
CPCNet Hong Kong acquired in September 2001. Other turnover in the
first half of 2002 included the sale of the 80% interest in China Express
No. 1 Backbone Network at a consideration of Hk$1.6 billion.

14
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LT3 Motor Trading KEZSH
M Geoeral Trading —#85
T Power Generation #%
t .20 Givil Infrastructure ZEBERH
Property 1%
‘.-~ Manufacturing & Others $3 RHAth
— Communications {5 &%
= Sales of Businesses & 5%

TERRCEPRE RER S EEER TR
—EFBIEM16% » BB RN 15 %KIEH
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Capital Expenditure

HkSmillion HHEEET

-£.4:05-2

1997 — 120,544
1998 C———— 12941
1999 11,625
2000 — —15,959
2001 12762
June
2002 14005
<A
HENEA
Six months ended
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
HKS e % HKS e ukgm % HKS e % HKS ’ HKS 2 "
. 1,728 2,170 634 920 584 2.834
KES Property % 74 % 15 21 71
it Others 0 0 0 0 43 3 156 5 8 i 660 "
o y 2
HR% Communications 9 0 9 0 0 0 4062 68 L2l 41 127 3
priden Manufacturing 611 5 218 Z 183 ” 271 A 206 ; 110 5
B Pawer Generation 16283 9 0 % 101 3 139 5 %
PR 8 Marketing & Distribution 0 0 26 8 168 10 292 5 612 929 & 9
TER M Civil Infrastructure 1.864 255 9 427 96 I 9 I 3 84 9
fin 2= Aviation o8 1 2 9 % v 0 ’ 0 g 0

During the 6 months ended of 2002, Crric Pacific hought two properties

in Shanghai for Hk$2.7 billion and a 50% interest in Crmic Capital
Markets Holdings Ltd. for nk8510 million. As ac 30 June 2002, the

Group’s contracted capital commitments were HK$998 million.

BEZZZEAEAR PEREUSK 4
RIS AREY 2 LR D E—T
TR P EA TR R A R w8950 % 5
HMIEEZEANASTH AEBCENE
ARERHBEWIELT AT E T
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Financial Review and Analysis

Group Liquidity and Capital Resources

General Policies

Crmic Pacific aims to finance its businesses with liabilities appropriate to
their cash flows, employing limited or non-recourse project finance
when it is available. The financing and cash management activities of
the Group are centralized to enhance the utilization of Group financial
resources and risk management control.

Cimic Pacific diversifies its funding sources through utilization of
both the banking and capital markets. The Company maintains
borrowing relationships with over 60 financial institutions based all
over the world and its bond is widely held by investors in Asia, Europe
and North America.

Crric Pacific minimizes its currency risks by financing non Hong
Kong dollar assets as far as possible with matching debt. For instance,
the Us$ cash flow arising from most infrastructure projects in Mainland
China are matched against Us$ debt. The continued development in RvB
debt and equity markets is very important to Crtic Pacific as the focus
of our businesses are increasingly towards Mainland China and more
and more projects will be generating RvB cashflow. Whenever possible,
rMB financing will be arranged for these investments.

In dealing with derivative products, the Company’s policy only
permits transactions for hedging purposes, speculative dealings are
strictly prohibited. Counterparties’ credit risks are also carefully
reviewed and, in general, the Company only deals with those financial

institutions whose credit ratings are single A or better.

Cash Flow From Operations
Since, by design, most of the Group’s debt is raised at the holding
company level, the amount of actual cashflow to the Company is an
important measure as to the Company’s ability to serve its debts. In the
first half of 2002, cash contributions to the Company from all
businesses in the Group was approximately Hk$3.2 billion. The
infrastructure sector contributed approximately Hk$1.9 billion. The
property sector contributed cash flow of approximately HK$930 million.
The Marketing & Distribution sector contributed cash to the Company
of approximately HK$320 million during the period.

In addition, the proceeds of HK$1.6 billion and HK$740 million were
received from the sale of China Express No. 1 Backbone Network and

Chongging Chang Jiang Bridge respectively.
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Group Debt and Liquidity KEMEHR TSRS

As of 30 June 2002, the Group’s total outstanding debt was Hk$12.1 MEFFFENAZT R AFEZ EEETR
billion (31 December 2001: Hk$14.6 billion), cash and deposit with ER—-E L CEE-F+ A=+
banks were Hk$3.2 billion giving a net debt of 1k$8.9 billion compared Ao — gl o5 B Be RIRTirsEal
to HK$10 billion at 31 December 2001. Net debt divided by total capital —~ B#E® =+ {50, BAEEAES /T LE

was 17%. o (ZEE-FEHZAZT 0N E
The Group policy is to maintain a high degree of financial ) o AL A B 7%
transparency and control. Save for regulatory constraints (for rRvB $iﬁ Mz MBS BUR R R R BRI R o
borrowings in the mainland for example) and operational BRAVE RS (KB ARG REEHE
considerations, all borrowings are centralised at the parent company Aob AR hAREPER AER
level which then provides funds to businesses. As of 30 June 2002, the BTRANHES - R_FEERNAZTA
Company’s borrowing structure is summarised in the following tables: TRBLEARRZEERHR:
Outstanding Debt Maturity Profile 2007 and HEZ BT IREH
Beyond
ZEFELE Total
in ukS million 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 RE# et LR EELHE
Parent Company'? 623 24 3,500 100 2,456 3,510 10213 HAFO
Subsidiaries 325 355 169 465 43 26 1,883 HHEAT

Total Outstanding Debt 1,448 379 3,669 565 2,499 3536 12,096 fEEAH

(1) Including a UsS450 million global bond which was issued by a wholly owned special (1) BfEH—KAFRHENZ 2ENBL 7872 mE
purposes vehicle, AT HETLHRESR-

in MKS million Percentage
Source of Debt Financing BEEET HA  REXE
Bank Loans 7,806 65%  HITHER
Private Placement 780 6% HHREEMARE
Bonds 3,510 20% 2IREH

12,096 100%

In late August Crric Pacific signed a 1k$2.5 billion 5.5/7 year RERERAAEEE-EAMER T
syndicated loan facility which further extends the debt maturity profile  AAETAMEFE L EZ KRBT WERE
and lower the Group’s overall cost of funds. Al — b R R S MR 2 B A TR R A

As of 30 June 2002, Group’s undrawn available facilities totalled ﬁﬁ%hﬁzﬁ
HK$8.1 billion. Approximately Hk$5.3 billion were committed term ANERETEFNAT B AL RE
loans, HK$1.7 billion were money market lines and the balance were ZHEEEELRER A+ R AEN L
trade facilities. These undrawn available facilities, combined with the TR AlREZ REE S B LA
strong recurrent cash flow generated from operations, provide ample BHWSEEE MR R H 5 (A5
financial resources and flexibility to the Group to implement its WHEREM 2 EH LA R RARB IR M
investment strategies. ZEGHENE SAEARERAHGZ MFE

T B R MR B A SR AV B 1
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Financial Review and Analysis

Employment of Derivative Products

In the normal course of its business, Crric: Pacific employs a
combination of financial instruments, including derivative products, to
manage its exposure to fluctuations in interest and currency rates.

The Company uses interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and
interest rate option contracts to hedge exposures or to modify the
interest rate characteristics of its borrowings. These derivative contracts
are linked to specific liabilities and are not for speculative purposes.

As of 30 June 2002, the Company had interest rate swap agreements
outstanding with a notional amount of approximately HkS2 billion.
Under these agreements, Crric Pacific is to exchange either fixed or
floating rate interest with its counterparties, without the exchange of the
underlying notional amounts. The objective is to stabilise the overall
cost of borrowings over time.

As at 30 June 2002, approximately 66% of the Group’s total
borrowings after swap bear interest at floating rates and the remaining
34% are at fixed rates. The average all-in cost of debt including
hedging costs in the first half 2002 was 4.4% compared with 6.1% a
vear before.

Crmic Pacific enters into cross currency swap contracts to change the
denomination of its borrowings as part of its management to limit
foreign currency exposures. The Company does not engage in foreign
currency speculation. At 30 June 2002, the Company had total cross
currency swap contracts outstanding with a notional amount of
approximately Hk$1.3 billion.

The denominaton of the Group’s borrowings after carrency swaps
and denomination of the cash and deposits with banks at 30 June
2002 were:

IR R 57 ¥

BRmAETLR
FEREEEAFERAET UAREAZ&
BTH (AETE TR SRR RERER-
LRI 2R i AR R A R
HTHE & 9T ok R B O LR B 2 M AR B
WEMERAH R E R E R IR
Ao
ANFR_EE_ERNAZTHELGER
TR AR & REE R TR
FH L5 HF HHRE ESRB A R BRY
BAgz - BB EMBRERLER.
REEEZERA =T B EREALER
ZEEEETA06% R FEFREE HER34%
RICARE B3Rt B Z R T T FAE 7 FI548
EERAR44% - ZERBAR61%
REDIEER PERETLRFENS
R EUE R EEEY AR RBURRE S A4
WHBEE - R EEEAAZTH FATF
ifFz BN G IRENRER T =0T,
ALEBMP ZHEEERNH =T RGN
Mg BEL BRI R ARTHER
mE:

HKSmillion Equivalent

EREETEE
485 Deb outstanding 4201 6,279 1012 534 70 12096
HE KWK Cash and Deposits 466 1,464 1,069 226 13 3.238
BESE  Ner Borrowings 3735 4815 (57) 308 57 8.858
Ef= Percentage 42% 54% 0% 4% 0% 100%
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Financial Guarantees and Pledged Assets SO 5 3 O % G

The aggregate outstanding amount of guarantees issued by Criic Pacific = RZFFZEAAZT R RARBEFERES
which were not included in consolidated borrowings was approximately — AREZMBEHERELEH —+ Fr. £5
HK$2.2 billion as of 30 June 2002. These are principally, a guarantee to G| & w5 B & O RATR AR 2 0
us Exim Bank for Ligang Power Station’s export credit facility, a several — A{EE FERE EHEB LG5 E AR

guarantee to support Crric Pacific’s share of Jinlin Power Station’s STRERMEERNBRULRERBER T
banking facilities and a several guarantee to an associated company, METARERTERESEEREREL
Treasure Trove Limited, for a Hk$2,400 million syndicated loan facility ~ #Treasure Trove Limired 824862 % 35k -
to finance the Crric Tower of which Cinic Pacific’s share is 62%. th(E 2R B IR A B A A L F 2 B ER
The Group has not provided any other guarantees for associated Ptk o X —I B M B TE B 20 ey SRR > T
companies’ horrowing facilities or obligations. Festival Walk and S SME R EARRE A F B IEL FINE R A
Discovery Bay are financed by their shareholders and do not have EOEEME REERERENERSAS
external borrowings; other associated companies and co-operative joint A SRR E > M E R EH RO EL(TE
ventures such as Cathay Pacific, Dragonair, Western Harbour tunnel EN L
and power stations have raised debts to finance their operational BEZZZEAAZATH AER_E
activities without recourse to their shareholders. NEEL (CEF-F+ZA=+—H: -
As at 30 June 2002, assets of HK$209 million (31 December BATHNEET 2EEREMBAFAGRE
2001: Hk$164 million) were pledged to secure loan facilities utilised EilSUD

by subsiciaries.

Total Debt R8T
rkSbillion #¥HET
A
1997 I — I
T3 In the first year —%ER
1998 — 1T
1999 T —— — = B in the second vear MHEA

2 C T Tt g [ I
2000 C3 In the third o fifth vears inclusive

2001 — s R ZEAFR (BEEEME)

June

2002 —u —
A

After [ifth vear T

Total debt decreased due to the repavment of bank borrowings. HREERITE R AR D




Financial Review and Analysis B[] e

Contingent Liabilities RRARK
As at 30 June 2002, the Group’s contingent liabilities had not changed ~ #E-ZFZZ4A =+ AREZ HARIR
significantly from the last year end. SEAER R A
Leverage HieLE
vkSbellion #¥HE1ET
70
o0 M
50 = Total Capital E&LEH
-/}0 5350“ 3:3“0

30 == Net debt/Total Capital%
SR EAREY

»') I)O
20 21 19% 19% 17%
10 e ——— mmm  Net Debt #8%

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 6/2002

Net debt divided by total capital was 17% at 30 June 2002 compared BE_ZZ-HERAZTH BREIEEARE
with 19% at the end of 2001. B1T% - M-FE—FERIS19% o




Interest Cover

ukShillion ¥ 1ET

6
> \/\
+ 10x
3
2
1
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 6/2002

EBITDA divided by interest expense for the 6 months ended 30 June 2002
was 10.4 compared to 6.4 in 2001, mainly due to the increase in profit
and a decrease in interest expense from HK$382 million in 2001 to
HK$275 million in the first half of 2002.

Credit Ratings

The Company has been assigned investment grade long term credit
rating of Baa2 and BBB - by Moody’s Investor Service and Standard &
Poor’s respectively. The credit outlook for both ratings are stable,
reflecting Crnic Pacific’s strong financial profile including low leverage,

diversified business and strong cashflow.

HRfEH

T3 EBITDA

FREFEM L0 SR T R 2 R R A

== eBTDa/Interest Expense (X = times)
AEHMBZd-BR ER
BEZFERBENEFEX S (x = )

mmm  [ncerest Expense FEXH

WEZZEZ-ERXAZTBHIEAEA AEEH
BB R R i IR AR
5104 MZFE-FUNE64 - FEEEFAG I
LA DB SRS EAT
“HERTHREZEZZF LEFEER R
FHRE®ET:

ERAR
BRERFELRE TALRZ RPEER
EREA A Bl B Baa2 X BBB-  WEFE R A
AR FEERFRRE R A ERE MBI
2 aEa LR EHES T RH SR E
o S F R o
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As at the end of June 2002, the Group emploved 11,940 people in its
headquarters in Hong Kong and its principal subsidiary companies
worldwide. The two main areas in which these principal subsidiaries
operate are in Hong Kong and Mainland China, employing 4,205 and
7,518 staff respectively. Another 217 staff are employed primarily in
Japan, Singapore and Canada. The total staff cost for the six months
ended 30 June 2002 was HKS646 million.

On an annual basis, Crric Pacific reviews the terms and conditions of
employment of its staff to ensure that the overall compensation and
benefits are both internally equitable and in line with local norms and
industry practice. The Group is promoting a culture of pay for
performance and believes in rewarding employees in accordance with
their contributions to the Group. In 2002 many existing forms of
guaranteed and fixed bonuses have been replaced by discretionary
performance honus arrangements and this trend will continue, the
Group has also undertaken a program to attain higher levels of
performance through a series of efficiency enhancements.

Crric Pacific is committed to providing a healthy organizational
environment conducive to each individual’s development. Employees
are encouraged to commit to continuous improvement by taking
responsibility for their own learning and development. Seminars and
courses organized by professional institutions are sponsored by the
Group to help employees improve job performance and prepare for
future development. In-house training ou product knowledge and skills
training for all levels of employees are organized regularly. Where
applicable, the Group arranges external service providers to conduct
customized training programs on specific subjects such as managerial
development and updates on new technology.

Crric Pacific also believes in investing in our future generation. The
Group has put in place various management trainee and apprentice
training programs. It also participates in the Government’s Youth Pre-
employment Training Program and supports other institutional
programs in society, such as the One-Company-One-Job Campaign.

The Group’s overall policies on human resource management remain
largely compatible with major employers in the territories it operates in.
Details of the Crric Pacific Share Incentive Plan 2000 and the granting

of options are reported on pages 36 and 37.

22

BECRBCEANAKIL  AEEZERLE
RiER 2z FEMBAFLER11,94081E
B FESEPEFBITERRE - B8 A
A5 4205 A% 7,518 A > H£2217 ARIZ{E
WRAE K EMERZHEAR - BEZ
BEZHENAZTAEAEAZEERARE
WARBNTAEET -

HERBRTFHRTETREENZERAK
Bl BAERGAHRERATAL  H5
HIERZE FOK A - AEBA ML
DEBASBER  TLURAHEENE/A
Ao RIERTE  BREBAWRBLARE
BILA B B R ZHRAN > ks
e AEEF B S RERTINE
FHEB > WER— RIS R E -

FEREH MR HARRE  HE
BEREfR  USHIES THES  REER
i  AEHEHRERBEREEAHNG R
R MEE RS LERE  HEEACL
WHERRBRNT - EETEHAERIEER
B B RS BB TS 0 T 2 TR
ERTER  REBFRERREHPHIER
SERERERER R ATEZ LY
A .

FEREHNBEAASTRERS - A%
WE L EEERE REELIGE > £HIF
% BUEUR A F 4Rt S A I 30 R 8%
Hib & - H RS ERN TR W [—HAE
—HL] FHE -

FEEZ ANEHREBERBECRANEE
H 4B 2 MM IR M R £ BUE T 5 K248
o AHEPERERMERHF _FTTLE
B RZEEREZERHENE 36 R37TH -




Sovemenss T

Crric Pacific is committed to excellent standards of corporate

governance and a full description of the operation of the Board, System

of Internal Control, Audit Committee, Codes and financial reporting
may be found on page 36 of the 2001 Annual Report.

The Audit Committee of the Board, consisting of independent non-
executive directors, Messrs Alexander Reid Hamilton (Chairman),
Hansen Loh Chung Hon and Willie Chang, has reviewed this Interim
Report with management and the Company’s internal and external
auditors and recommended its adoption by the Board.

The Interim Accounts, which are prepared in accordance with
ssap 25 “Interim Financial Reporting”, have been reviewed by the
Company’s independent auditors PricewaterhouseCoopers in
accordance with the Auditing Standard sas 700 “Engagements To
Review Interim Financial Reports” except that the scope did not
extend to the results of the listed associated company, Cathay Pacific
Alrways Limited.

During the six months ended 30 June 2002, the Company was in
compliance with the Code of Best Practice as set out in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited.
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account - Unaudited XEEREGSBEAE

for the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=THIUAEA

in 18 ilion it 2002 2001 ugmEmmin
Turnover 11,481 8,787 BEH
Profit from consolidated activities 3 1,354 1.288 HARERERA
Share of profits less losses of

associated companies 1,107 723 P86 45 2 ) ) M
Net finance charges 4 (232) (267) MBI HHH
Profit before taxation 2,229 1,744 B L v ]
Taxation 5 (161) (155)  #iH
Profit after taxation 2,068 1,589 BB 48 B A
Minority interests (103) (89)  SHIRNHER
Profit attributable to shareholders 1.965 1,500 JBe 3 A i A
Dividends 6 B8

Interim dividend proposed (657) (439) PR A
Transfer (to) / from reserves (10) 1 & (N HbEh
Earnings per share (Hk$) 7 0.897 0.683 HREN Bl
Dividend per share (HKS) HRBL (B¥T)

- Interim 0.30 0.20 -




i c&nsdidated Balance Sheet - : ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ RAHEARE ‘

Unaudited Audiied
30 June 2002 31 December 2001
Note REEY E#E
in YKS million Wet —FFE_HEAA=+H ZFF-F+ZA=+—H VBB ETHE
Fixed assets 15,704 14,702 PEE
Associated companies 25,229 24,879 BEAW
Investments 8,094 8,449 #%®
Goodwill 311 353 HE
Current assets mEEE
Properties held for sale 336 345 HEME
Inventories 1,752 1,799 &
Listed investment 1.359 2,189 ks
Debtors, accounts receivable, FENCIRTE - FEMCHREX - 4
deposits and prepayments S 2,919 3,330 KB HIE
Cash and bank deposits 3,238 4,631 Ba REITHEN
______ 9,604 12,294
Current liabilities wE A
Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts RATER - HER AL
- secured 68 72 — L
— unsecured 1.667 2,158 — ST
Creditors, accounts payable, FERTRRTE - EATHRAR - &
deposits and accruals 8 3,002 2,423 BREAT 3R
Provision for taxation 148 141 Tt TR A
______ 4,885 4794
Net current assets 4,719 7,500 BEBEE
Total assets less current liabilities 54,057 55,883 HEAREHAHK
Long term borrowings (10,361) (12,409) RHf*
Deferred taxation 214) (215) BEBH
43,482 43,259
Financed by: HERIE
Share capital 876 876 ik
Reserves 40,193 39,299 Gl
Proposed dividend 657 1,314 BERR
Shareholders’ funds 41,726 41,489 B¥%E%
Minority interes(s 1,756 1,770 SBIBRHHER
43,482 43,259
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement - Unaudited

for the six months ended 30 June

REFEGEAHLNRE
BEAAZFAUEAEA

in HKS million 2002 2001 BN EECHE

Net cash inflow from consolidated
activities 1.240 645 RAHAEBEZRLTEATH

Net cash inflow / (outflow) from RHBHEEHZBEHA
investing activities 577 (273) (Fily) HH

Net cash (outflow) / inflow from RKHBEZHE (Hl),/
financing activities (3,201) 680 A B

Net (decrease) / increase in cash BeREABEZ (BP)/
and cash equivalents (1,444) 1,052 34 I -8

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 4,574 5,176 R—H—AZBEREFAZL

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 11 (4) SBERBRHZHE

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 3,141 6.224 BRAAZTHRZEALRENEE




' Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity - Unaudited

Jor the six months ended 30 June

FEERELNARDE

HEANAZFAUEAEA

in WK$ million 2002 2001 LI E BTsE
At 1 January 41,637 41,304 —H—H
Prior year adjustments LA

Share of associated company BB & Al

for retirement benefits (148) - ZBHhREHN

As restated 41,489 41,304 5
Share of reserve of associated company (410) 223 BANT 2 2 7 5
Exchange translation differences 3 (4)  AEERIEE
Reserves released 7 (1) G
Net (losses) / gains not recognised in RRESHEREDZ

the consolidated profit and loss account (414) 218 (1), 23 5
Profit attributable to shareholders 1,965 1,500 JBe T HE A e )
Dividends (1,314) (1,427) BB

41,726 41,595
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Notes to the Accounts & B ‘

1 Significant Accounting Policies

These condensed unaudited consolidated interim accounts (“the
Accounts”) are prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Statement
of Standard Accounting Practice (“ssap”) No. 25 “Interim Financial
Reporting” issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants and
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

The Accounts should be read in conjunction with the 2001
annual accounts.

The accounting policies used in the preparation of the Accounts
are consistent with those used in the annual accounts for the year
ended 31 December 2001 except that the Group has adopted new or
revised ssaps, particularly ssap No. 34 “Emplovee Benefits” and ssap
No. 11 “Foreign Currency Translation” which became effective for
the current accounting period. These adoptions have no significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements except that the adoption
of ssap No. 34 by Citic Pacific’s associated company, Cathay Pacific
Airways Limited, has reduced the Cimic Pacific’s attributable

opening retained earnings by HK$148 million.
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2 Turnover and Segment Information

An analysis of the group’s turnover and profit from consolidated

activities before net finance charges and share of profits less losses

2 ERHERSERH _
PUT A% £ BRH 8 0 2 £ B8 R IORE

BIXHBEZ e ERREN L EME AR Z

before taxation of associated companies by principal activities are as  BRE Bi& I HUE 1R
follows:
Share of
Profits less
Profit from  Losses of
Consolidated  Associated Group Segment Segment
Stx months ended 30 June 2002 Turnover Activities  Companies Total ~ Allocations Profit | BEZRBEAAZFHULABA
Btk
BELF
He B AEF HE
in i&8 million e ] EBiEH BER  EHLF  ERSOE EEBFH | UB¥EEIE
By principal activity: B E T T
Communications 2,226 116 271 387 - 387 | HRE
Power and civil
infrastructure 892 769 58 827 - 827 | HERAWRIH
Aviation - - 409 409 - 409 | Ri%
Property 228 169 332 501 43 544 | P¥
Marketing & distribution HERNH
Motor vehicles and
related services 2,932 141 13 154 (32) 122 RHERA RRE
Trading 2,359 19 10 29 (11) 18 g5
Industrial
manufacturing 1,823 141 - 141 - 141 | THERY
Others 1,021 168 14 182 - 182 | Hfp
Less: General &
administration
expenses - (169) - (169) - (169) | ®:—BRATBAM
11,481 1,354 1,107 2,461 - 2461
Net finance charges (232) | WE X hEHE
Taxation (161) | B
Profit after taxation 2,008 | BEHEHN
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Notes to the Accounts

2 Turnover and Segment Information continued

HRH M

2 EXBRANEAY

Share of
Profits less
Profit from Losses of
Consolidated  Assoctated Group Segment Segment
Siz months ended 30 June 2001 Turnover Activities  Companies Total  Allocations Profie | BE-FEFZ-FEXAZFHILNEA
Fril
BLE
Hé& b SE sl
in WK§ million S EHHH EE  EELT  EFSE EBEA | UBNEEIHE
By principal activity: HEREHA T
Communications 352 75 100 175 - 175 | HR%
Power and civil
infrastructure 969 869 46 915 - 915 | HERSEERHE
Aviation - - 379 379 - 379 | Rz
Property 131 99 175 274 63 337 %E
Marketing & distribution HERNEY
Motor vehicles and
related services 2,533 148 12 160 (49) 111 TR R B AR
Trading 2,477 21 11 32 (14) 18 g5
Industrial
manufacturing 1,553 117 - 117 - 117 | TR
Others 772 138 - 138 - 138 | Mt
Less: General &
administration
expenses - (179) - (179) - (179)] W:—BERIRER
8,787 1,288 723 2,011 - 2,011
Net finance charges (267) WHXHTH
Taxation (155)| #%
Profit after taxation 1,589 | BBigEA

An analysis of group’s turnover by geographical area is as follows:

LT Rt BB EEE AR

Six months ended 30 June
HEANRZ=ZFALENEA

i ukS million 2002 2001 VBB EE i E
By geographical area: FEHL PR AT
Hong Kong 4,538 4.358 FH
Mainland China 6,408 3,644 P AR
Japan 223 224 HA
Others 312 561 Hit
11.4381 8,787
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3 The profit from consolidated activities is arrived at after crediting
and charging:

Six months ended 30 June

HENA=ZFHIEANBEA

3 HEEe¥EREATEARME:

in 18 million 2002 2001 pwEsTaE
Dividend income from investments 228 255 RAREZRERA
Net gain from investments 91 40 HEZFEH

Cost of inventories 5,820 4,833 HFHEEF
Depreciation and amortisation 268 241 HE R
Goodwill amortisation 10 3 RN

4 Net finance charges included interest expense of HK$275 million
(2001: HK$382 million).

5 Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16% (2001: 16%) on the
estimated assessable profit for the period. Overseas taxation is
calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the period at the
rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates. Detailed as follows:

Six months ended 30 June

BEANAZFHIEANEA

4 MEIHFEAEAELHER ELTh
HEC(CEE-F R ZEAT HE) -

5 FiEAIEH T LI R Z AR R R
AR E16% (ZEE—HF16%) 5HE B
YE AR B8 37 0 ) i 2 A ST RE R B i R i A S
BEERERZBATHEANE BT

in_1x$ million 2002 2001  ugMEHTHE
Company and subsidiary companies KL F B4 A
Hong Kong profits tax 67 04 EEHE
Overseas taxation 15 31 TR
Deferred taxation (3) (11) EEHE
Associated companies N
Hong Kong profits tax 40 24 FHEMNER
Overseas taxation 35 36 AN
Deferred taxation 7 11 HEIERTH
161 155
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Notes to the Accounts

MR H it

6 Dividends 6 BR
Six months ended 30 June
BEAAZFALANEAR
in HKS million 2002 2001 LB aETHE
2001 final dividend paid: Hk$0.60 ER_FT-FERPRE BRIER0.00T
(2000: HK$0.65) per share 1,314 1,427 (ZZEZZE: GREH0.657T)
2002 interim dividend proposed: BRE_TT_EEPHRE BRER0.30T
HK$0.30 (2001: HK$0.20) per share 657 439 (CERT—E EREW0.207T)

7 The calculation of earnings per share is based on profit
attributable to shareholders of HK$1,965 million (2001: Hk$1,500
million) and on 2,189,780,160 shares in issue for the period (2001:
2,196,000,160 shares in issue).

No diluted earnings per share is presented for the six months
ended 30 June 2002 as the exercise of all the share options
outstanding during the period have no dilutive effect on the earnings
per share.

8.1 Debtors, Accounts Receivable, Deposits
and Prepayments

30 June 2002 31 December 2001

7 SRERTIRBE R Z R GRS
TABATHEET CET £ BHE+RE
7o) REBATRA2,189,780, 160/ (ZEE—
£ BEITRA2,196,000,1608) 7T

R BRI AT R WA
BREMGIBEYE NEBEE_FTFR
A=ZTHEAREARLRARREEEENER
B o

8.1 BKERIE -BRER Ze&RWMAREA

Eyesl S
in MKS million AHZ1H +Z-ZA=+—H LB E Bt E
Trade debtors REWE 5 BRIA
- Within 1 year 1,578 1,370 ——4ER
— Over 1 year 68 34 ——HfUL
1,046 1,404
Note: BizE:

(i) Trade debtors are net of provision and the ageing is classified based on invoice date.

(it) Each business units has a defined credit policy appropriate to its circumstances.
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8.2 Creditors, Accounts Payable, Deposits
and Accruals

30 June 2002 31 December 2001

82 MBRER BHEX ZeRECSRER

ot 2 g3 ZEE—E
i HKS million NH=1+H +ZA=+—8 LB EETHE
Trade creditors FEfHE 5 BRIA
— Within 1 year 1,119 1,136 —~—%FRK
- Over 1 year 54 18 —~—4L k
1,173 1,154

9 Comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with the
current presentation as required under the new or revised Hong

Kong Statement of Standard Accounting Practice implemented.

9 ETHBREFEELAR LUFSCHEY
FHEETERET HBRANAEL 2%
i
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Auditors’ iIndependent Review Report

To the Board of Directors of Crric Pacific Limited

Introduction
We have been instructed by the company to review the interim

financial report set out on pages 24 to 33.

Directors’ responsibilities

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited require the preparation of an
interim financial report to be in compliance with ssap 25 “Interim
financial reporting” issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants
and the relevant provisions thereof. The interim financial report is

the responsibility of, and has been approved by, the directors.

Review work performed
We conducted our review in accordance with sas 700 “Engagements
to review interim financial reports” issued by the Hong Kong Society
of Accountants, except that the scope of our review, as instructed by
the directors, did not extend to the results of an associated company,
Cathay Pacific Airways Limited, whose results were equity
accounted for by the directors on the basis of its published interim
financial information.

A review consists principally of making enquiries of management
and applying analytical procedures to the interim financial report
and based thereon, assessing whether the accounting policies and
presentation have been consistently applied unless otherwise
disclosed. A review excludes audit procedures such as tests of
controls and verification of assets, liabilities and transactions. It is
substantially less in scope than an audit and therefore provides a
lower level of assurance than an audit. Accordingly we do not

express an audit opinion on the interim financial report.
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Modified review conclusion arising

from limitation of review scope

On the basis of our review which does not constitute an audit, with
the exception of any modifications that might have been determined
to be necessary had the above limitation not existed, we are not
aware of any material modifications that should be made to the

interim financial report for the six months ended 30 June 2002.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 August 2002

ERTRHHEIKE — FHIEEa R
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BERBUKHE & 5 e B
BB

B EEEAA AR
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Dividend and Closure of Register

The Directors have declared an interim dividend of HK$0.30 (2001:
HK$0.20) per share for the vear ending 31 December 2002 payable on
19 September 2002 to shareholders whose names appear on the
Register of Members of the Company on 17 September 2002. The
Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 11 September
2002 to 17 September 2002, both days inclusive, during which period
no share transfer will be effected. In order to qualify for the interim
dividend, all wansfers, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
must be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrars, Tengis Limited,
at 4th Floor, Hutchison House, 10 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on 10 September 2002.

Share Option Plan

Under the Crric Pacific Share Incentive Plan 2000 (“the Plan”) adopted
on 31 May 2000, the Board may invite any director, executive or
employee of the Company or any of its subsidiaries to subscribe for
options over the Company’s shares on payment of Hk$1 per acceptance.
The subscription price determined by the Board will be at least the
higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the Company’s share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant and (iii) the nominal value of
the Company’s shares. The maximum number of shares over which
options may be granted under the Plan shall not exceed 10% of (i) the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time or (ii) the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of adopting the Plan,
whichever is the lower.

On 28 May 2002 options to subscribe for a total of the 11,550,000
shares in the Company listed in the table below representing 0.53% of
the issued share capital, at the exercise price of HK$18.20 per share,
were granted under the Plan. The closing price of the Company’s share
immediately before the date of grant was 1k513.10. All options granted
and accepted can be exercised in whole or in part within 5 vears from
the date of grant. All were accepted, and none were exercised, cancelled

or lapsed in the period up to 30 June 2002.
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Number of Share Options

Granted during the period

HREZHBRELE
Directors of the Company 8,100,000 ALFEE
Continuous Contract Employees 3,450,000 FHEAXBHSNER
Total 11,550,000 =&t

The fair value of an option on one Cimc Pacific share granted in the
current period measured as at the date of grant of 28 May 2002 was
HK$5.47 on the following assumptions using the Black-Scholes option

pricing model:

® Exercise price of HK$18.20;

o Expected volatility of 45.3% (based on historical share price

movement);

e Expected annual dividend yield of 4.8% (based on historical

dividend payments);

» [Estimated expected life of the options granted is 5 years (the full
term of the outstanding option awards and therefore is the

maximum entry for this assumption).

¢ Five-year Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes interest rate at the date

the options were granted was 4.74%; and

¢ A 5% risk-of-forfeiture adjustment in respect of the expectation that

some options will be forfeited over their estimated expected lifetime.

The result of the Black-Scholes option pricing model can be
materially affected by changes in these assumptions so an option’s
actual value may differ from the estimated fair value of the options due
to limitations of the model.

All the options forfeited before expiry of the Plan will be treated as
lapsed options which will not be added back to the number of shares
available to be issued under the Plan.

As there is no accounting standard in Hong Kong governing the
accounting for employee stock option, their cost has not been

incorporated in the interim accounts.
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Statutory Disclosure

Directors’ Interests in Securities

1.

38

Shares in the Company and Associated Corporation
The interests of the Directors in securities of the Company or any
associated corporation as at 30 June 2002 as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 29 of the Securities
(Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance (the “sp1 Ordinance™) were

as follows:

BOzEHEHS
1. HAFRESDZEUZRERG

Rk (B BB (HEER

tepl)) FE0BWEATREZETAMA
AHEER_FF_FEAA=ZTHERAE

ARSI TRB R BSEEINT

Number of Shares
REEH
Personal Corporate Family Other
interests interests interests interests Total
AR R KR EibHE a
Cmc Pacific Limited hEREEHBRAR
Larry Yung Chi Kin 400,381,000 400,381,000 %5
Henry Fan Hung Ling 43,000,000 43,000,000 TErEES
Vernon Francis Moore 3,200,000 3,200,000 ZfEFE
(Note 1) (Ht5E1)
Peter Lee Chung Hing 500,000 500,000 ZHE
Norman Yuen Kee Tong 33,000 33,000 BikLE
Robert Ernest Adams.- 550,000 550,000 HxE
Liu Jifu 40,000 40,000 FlEEg
~ Hansen Loh Chung Hon 1,050,000 500.000 500,000 1,550,000 [EgE
(Note 2) (F5£2)  (Note 2) (HM32)
André Desmarais 87,800 100,230,000 1,000 100,318,800 fEEE

(Note 3) (H33)

Cathay Pacific Airways Limited

Hansen Loh Chung Hon 450,000

Note 1: Deemed interests held by the relevant Director and his family as contingent

benefictaries of a discretionary trust.

Note 2: The corporate interests and the family interests of the relevant Director
duplicate each other as the 500,000 shares are held through a company in which
the relevant Director and his family are interested.

Note 3: In addition to the aforesaid, the relevant Director is also one of the trustees
of a Canadian discretionary trust which controls Canadian companies which own
24,000 shares of the Company.

BRHETRAA

450,000 [EE
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2. Share Options in the Company 2. EOFIRIERE

As at 30 June 2002, the number of outstanding options granted REZZFZZEAAZTH  RBEEHE
by the Company to the Directors to subscribe for shares of the wBHIE 29 BRTREZERE MK
Company, as recorded in the register required to be kept under fEk o ANFRTEBUEEAL TR
section 29 of the sp1 Ordinance were as follows: B B R AT SRR R 0 F
Number of
: Share Options of the Company
Directors FLABRERE ¥
Larry Yung Chi Kin 2,000,000 RE R
Henry Fan Huang Ling 1,600,000 VeERil i
Vernon Francis Moore 1,000,000 RfRHE
Peter Lee Chung Hing 1,000,000 A
Norman Yuen Kee Tong 500,000 i
Robert Ernest Adams 300,000 BLE
Yao Jinrong 300,000 itk 4
Chang Zhenming 500,000 HERY
Li Shilin 300,000 FhA
Carl Yung Ming Jie 300,000 RN
Liu Jifu 300,000 AR
Total 8,100,000 Bk
Substantial Sharehelders EERR
As at 30 June 2002, the interests of the substantial shareholders, other REZFEZEZEARAZ+H » RBEFEER GG
than the Directors of the Company, in the equity securities of the FA(VWVRATREZEZEMATLE > 8
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section BOR (AQARERR RALARAEEZ
16(1) of the sp1 Ordinance and the amount of such interests are as MERZEHEEZHENT
follows:
Number of Shares
of the Company
Narme EOFRZREEBE  EH
China International Trust and Investment 632,066,285  HEEMHGHBREAT
Corporation
China International Trust & Investment Corporation 632,060,285  TEEBELRE FhEH) FRAF
Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited (“Crric vk”) (MEFHE])
Heedon Corporation 498,424,285 Heedon Corporation
Honpyville Corporation 310,988,221  Honpville Corporation
Rockhampton Investments Limited 292,000,000  Rockhampton Investments Limited
Bloomfield Enterprises Corp. 292,000,000  Bloomfield Enterprises Corp.
Earnplex Corporation 292,000,000  Earnplex Corporation
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Statutory Disclosure

Cmnic HK 1s a substantial shareholder of the Company indirectly
through the following wholly owned subsidiary companies by virtue of
section 3(2) of the spi Ordinance as follows:

HREER RS 8(2)%  PEEEER
THEEMBARMERAERAZ TH
R

Number of Shares
of 1ix80.40 each

Name of Subsidiary Companies of Criic 11k GRAEEROWOTZRAEE  TEERZHBLAEE
Affluence Limited 43,260,000  Affluence Limited
Winton Corp. 30,718,000  Winton Corp.
Westminster Investoment Ine. 101,960,000  Westminster Investment Inc.
Jetway Corp. 22,500,000  Jetway Corp.
Cordia Corporation 32,258,064  Cordia Corporation
Honpville Corporation 310,988,221  Honpville Corporation
Hainsworth Limited 80,376,000 Hainsworth Limited
Southpoint Enterprises Inc. 10,000,000  Southpoint Enterprises Inc.

Each of Affluence Limited, Winton Corp., Westminster Investment
Inc., Jetway Corp., Cordia Corporation, Honpville Corporation,
Hainsworth Limited and Southpoint Enterprises Inc. holds the shares of
the Company beneficially. Accordingly, Honpville Corporation is a
substantial shareholder of the Company.

China International Trust and Investment Corporation is the direct
holding company of Citic HK. Crric 1K is the direct holding company of
Heedon Corporation, Hainsworth Limited, Affluence Limited and
Barnsley Investments Limited. Heedon Corporation is the direct holding
company of Winton Corp., Westminster Investment Inc., Jetway Corp.,
Kotron Company Ltd. and Honpville Corporation and Kotron
Company Litd. is the direct holding company of Cordia Corporation.
Barnsley Investments Limited is the direct holding company of
Southpoint Enterprises Inc. Accordingly, the interests of China
International Trust and Investunent Corporation in the Company
duplicate the interests of Crric HK in the Company. The interests of Ciric
HK in the Company duplicate the interests in the Company of all its
direct and indirect subsidiary companies as described above. The
interests of Heedon Corporation in the Company duplicate the interests
in the Company of all its direct and indirect subsidiary companies as
described above. The interests of Barnslev Investments Limited in the
Company duplicate the interests in the Company of its direct subsidiary
company as described above and the interests of Kotron Company Litd.
in the Company duplicate the interests in the Company of its direct

subsidiary company as described above.
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Rockhampton Investments Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary
company of Bloomfield Enterprises Corp., which in turn is a wholly
owned subsidiary company of Earnplex Corporation. Accordingly, the
interests of Earnplex Corporation duplicate the interests in the
Company of its direct and indirect subsidiary companies as described
above. Mr Larry Yung Chi Kin is the owner of the entire issued share
capital of Earnplex Corporation. The interests in the Company of
Rockhampton Investments Limited represent part of the corporate
interests of Mr Larry Yung Chi Kin as mentioned in the above section of

“Directors’ Interests in Securities”.

Share Capital
The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the period.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiary companies has

purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the period.
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This Interim Report contains certain forward-looking statements with
respect to the financial condition, results of operations and business of
the Group. These forward-looking statements represent the Company’s
expectations or beliefs concerning future events and involve known and
unknown risks and uncertainty that could cause actual results,
performance or events to differ materially from those expressed or

implied in such statements.

Forward-looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties.

Readers should be cautioned that a number of factors could cause
actual results to differ, in some instances materially, from those

anticipated or implied in any forward-looking statement.
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Terms

Capital employed

Cash contributed
from all business

Total debt

Net debt

Shareholders’ equity

Total capital

EBITDA

Contribution

Ratios

Earnings per share
Shareholders’ equity
per share

Leverage

Cashflow per share

Interest cover

Capital emploved represents shareholders’
funds plus total borrowings

Cash inflow to Crric Pacific Ltd. {from all its
subsidiary companies, associated companies

and other imvestments

Short term and long term loans, notes and

bonds

Total debt less cash and bank deposits
Shareholders’ funds + unimpaired goodwill
written off to reserves for accounting
purposes

Shareholders” equity + net debt

Net Profit less interest expense, taxation,
depreciation and amortisation

Net income from each business before

amortisation of goodwill, and interest and
overheads paid by Citic Pacific Litd.

Profit attributable to shareholders

Weighted average number of shares
(by days) in issue for the vear

Shareholders’ equity

Total issued and fully paid shares
at end of the vear

Net debt
Total capital

Cash contributed from all business

Total issued and fully paid shares
at end of the year

EBITDA

Interest expense
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Headquarters and Registered Office
32nd Floor, Citic Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

Contacts

To review our website, please visit www.citicpacific.com
Telephone: 2820 2111

Fax: 2877 2771

contact@citicpacific.com

Security Information

Crric Pacific Ltd. is listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.
American Depositary Receipts are traded over the counter in the
United States.

Stock Codes

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong: 267
Bloomberg: 267 Hk

Reuters: 0267. HK

Ticker Symbol for ADR: CTPCY

Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central

Hong Kong

Registrars

Tengis Limited

4th Floor, Hutchison House
10 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Telephone: 2846 9666

Fax: 2810 8185

Company Secretary
Alice Tso Mun Wai

Investor Relations
Holly Chen
Telephone: 2820 2004

Fax: 2104 6632
investor.relations@citicpacific.com

Key Dates
Closure of Register: 11 September 2002 to

17 September 2002
Interim Dividend payable: 19 September 2002
Financial Year End: 31 December 2002
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Crric Pacifie Ltd 32/F Crric Tower, 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong
Telephone: 2820 2111 Facsimile: 2877 2771 www.citicpacific.com
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CITIC PACIFIC
CITIC Pacific Limited
b £ 4 3 A
10 September 2002
To the Shareholders

Dear Sir or Madam,

CITIC PACIFIC LIMITED ( THE “COMPANY”)

(i) SUMMARY FINANCIAL REPORT

(i) WEBSITE VERSION OPTION OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS, SUMMARY
FINANCIAL REPORT AND INTERIM REPORT

NEW OPTIONS OF CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE COMPANY

We would like to bring your attention to two important options which you would have for corporate
communications from the Company.

New legislation and the recent amendments to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and to the Articles of Association of the Company enable the Company to
offer shareholders (i) the choice to receive a summary financial report (the “Summary Financial Report”) in
place of the Annual Report and Accounts (the “Full Annual Report”) and (ii) the choice to rely on the versions
of the Summary Financial Report and the Full Annual Report and interim report of the Company that will be
published on the website of the Company rather than receiving a printed copy of either document.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL REPORT
Starting from 2003, you may choose the level of information that suits you from options (a) or (b) below:—
(a)  the Full Annual Report containing all the statutory information required by legislation; or

(b)  the Summary Financial Report containing all the information and particulars contained on the face of the
balance sheet and profit and loss account of the Group, together with key information from the Full
Annual Report. The Summary Financial Report only gives a summary of the information and particulars
contained in the Full Annual Report from which it is derived.

Under the new legislation, you may send a notice to the Company in the form of the enclosed reply slip
indicating whether, with effect from 2003, you wish and agree to select one of the options given to you in the

reply slip.

" If you take no action, we will send you the Summary Financial Report instead of the Full Annual Report.
However, if you so wish, you can still obtain the Full Annual Report of the Company by writing to the
Company’s Share Registrars. : :

-1-

CITIC Pacific Ltd. 32nd Floor, CITIC Tower, 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong.
Tel: 28202111 Fax: 28772771 Email: contact@citicpacific.com Web Site: www.citicpacific.com



WEBSITE VERSION OPTION OF THE FULL ANNUAL REPORT, SUMMARY FINANCIAL REPORT
AND INTERIM REPORT

In addition, commencing from 2003, the Summary Financial Report, Full Annual Report and interim report of
the Company will be posted to the Company’s website (http://www.citicpacific.com) on or before their respective
date of dispatch.

You may choose to rely on the versions posted on the website of the Company instead of being sent a printed
copy of either document (the “Website Version Option™). If you so choose, you will be notified of the publication
of the Summary Financial Report, the Full Annual Report and interim report of the Company on the website of
the Company, the address of the website and the location on the website where such document(s) may be
accessed and how it or they may be accessed.

You may also choose (i) to rely on the copy of that notification that will be posted on the website of the
Company in place of a printed copy of that notification (the “Website Notification Option™) or (ii) to receive a
printed copy of the notification by post.

We encourage you to take advantage of both the Website Version Option and the Website Notification Option as
we believe for many shareholders it is a more convenient and prompt method of communication. The Company
wishes to be more environmental friendly in conducting its businesses and believes that the website option to
the shareholders will help to reduce consumption of the world’s natural resources and save printing and mailing
costs for the Company.

The Website Version Option and the Website Notification Option are entirely voluntary. If you wish to continue
receiving the Company’s Summary Financial Report/Full Annual Report and interim report in printed
form, you need not complete the section headed ‘“Website Version Option” in the reply slip enclosed.

HOW TO COMPLETE AND RETURN YOUR REPLY SLIP

Please tick the appropriate box and sign and return the reply slip in the envelope provided to the Share
Registrars of CITIC Pacific Limited, Tengis Limited, 4th Floor, Hutchison House, 10 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong by 21 October 2002. You may return the reply slip to Tengis Limited by post or hand delivery. If your
registered address is in Hong Kong, the enclosed envelope will be postage prepaid and you will not need to
affix a stamp when returning your reply slip. Otherwise, please affix an appropriate stamp.

Unless and until you inform the Company otherwise in accordance with legislation, your reply slip will apply to
documents to be sent to shareholders for the purposes of the 2003 annual general meeting of the Company and
subsequent general meetings of the Company and future interim reports. If you take no action, we will send you
the Summary Financial Report instead of the Full Annual Report.

Please note that you have the right to change your choice, at any time by reasonable notice in writing served on
the Company, as to whether you wish to receive the Summary Financial Report or the Full Annual Report and
to receive such report(s) and accounts in printed form or to rely on the versions of such document(s) posted to
the Company’s website.

In addition, if you choose the website option but for any reason have difficulty in receiving or gaining access to
the document, you will promptly upon request be sent the printed forms of the Summary Financial Report/Full

Annual Report or interim report, as the case may be, free of charge.

If you have any queries relating to this letter, please call the enquiry hotline at 2846 9666.

Yours faithfully,

For and on behalf of
CITIC Pacific Limited
Alice Tso Mun Wai
Company Secretary
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CITIC PACIFIC

CITIC Pacific Limited
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To:

Name of Registered Sharehblder:
Signature:

Date:

Contact telephone number:

REPLY SLIP

CITIC Pacific Limited (the “Company™)
c/o Tengis Limited

4th Floor, Hutchison House,

10 Harcourt Road,

Hong Kong.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL REPORT AND FULL ANNUAL REPORT

Please tick one box under this section.

O

O

I/We would like to receive the Summary Financial Report instead of the Full Annual Report for the
financial year ending 31 December 2002 and future years.

I/We would like to receive the Full Annual Report for the financial year ending 31 December 2002
and future years.

WEBSITE VERSION OPTION

If you wish to continue receiving the Company’s Summary Financial Report/Full Annual Report
and interim report in printed form, you need not complete this section.

If you wish to rely on the website version, please tick one box under this section.

O

I/We would like to rely on (i) versions posted on the website of the Company in lieu of the printed
copies of the Full Annual Report/Summary Financial Report and interim report and (ii) the electronic
notification posted on the website of the Company of the publication of those documents on the
website and other related matters in lieu of a printed copy of that notification.

I/We would like (i) to rely on versions posted on the website of the Company in lieu of the printed
copies of the Full Annual Report/Summary Financial Report and interim report and (ii) to receive
by post a printed copy of the notification of the publication of those documents on the website and
other related matters.
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